
  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 1 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
MEETING MINUTES 

August 9, 2004 
 

Approved as submitted September 7, 2004. 
 
DATE:   August 9, 2004 
TIME:  7:00 PM 
PLACE:  58000 Grand River 
 
 
1. Call to Order:  Supervisor Shigley called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call:  Present: Joseph Shigley, Supervisor 

     Patricia Carcone, Treasurer 
     Pamela Johnson, Clerk 
     Steven Adams, Trustee 
     Ray Bisio, Trustee 
     Dan Cash, Trustee 
     Lannie Young, Trustee  

 
                   Also Present:  Matt Quinn, Township Attorney  
      Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 
      Chris Doozan, Township Planner 
      Leslie Boisvenu, Township Engineer 
      Loren Crandell, Township Engineer 
      Larry Phillips, Building Official 
      Les Cash, Fire Chief 
     
    Guests:  65 
 
4. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
  - Approval of Special Meeting Minutes of June 17, 2004 
  - Approval of Special Meeting Minutes of July 2, 2004 
  - Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of July 6, 2004 
  - Approval of Disbursements 
  - Financial Report for June, 2004 
  - Fire Department Monthly Report 
  - Engineer Monthly Report 
  - Zoning Officer Report 
  - Sheriff Department Monthly Report  
  - Building Department Monthly Report 
  - Special Event Request for Pierce Promotions – Sept. 25th & 26th 
  - Security Agreement for Park Place Environmental 
  - CDBG Contract with HAVEN 
  - Dispatch Services Agreement with the City of Novi 
  - Resolution of Support for Traffic Signal – Eight Mile and Napier Roads 
 

Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the consent agenda as submitted.  Ms. Johnson 
supported the motion. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 2 

 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Shigley, Adams, Young, Johnson, Bisio, Cash 
    Nays: None  
 
 Motion approved. 

 
5.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  NONE 
 
6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 Mr. Shigley noted that they have a long agenda this evening.  He stated that he would like to  
 have a 10:00 PM cut-off time for tonight’s meeting.  He stated that he would like to move quickly 
 through the agenda and would like to not table anything. 
  

Mr. Shigley made a motion to approve the agenda as written with a meeting cut-off time of  
10:00 PM.  Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 

 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
7. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS  NONE 
 
8. Public Hearing for Martindale Road Water Main and Road Improvements Special Assessment 
 District 
 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to close the regular meeting and open the public hearing for the 
 Belladonna Drive Sanitary Sewer Improvements Special Assessment District.  Ms. Johnson 
 supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved.   

The regular meeting was closed and the public hearing was opened at 7:03 PM. 
 
 Mr. Quinn explained that this is the first public hearing for the Belladonna Drive sanitary sewer 

special assessment district.  At the conclusion of the public hearing the Board will be requested 
to consider a resolution that determines the sufficiency of the petitions, approves the plans and 
the cost estimates and approves that there is a necessity for these particular improvements.  He 
stated that the estimated cost of this is $291,250 for the construction costs, as prepared by 
Giffels-Webster Engineers.  He stated that the notice of hearing that was sent to everyone stated 
that if anyone in the district wanted to buy REU’s they could have the cost of it included within the 
cost of the SAD. 
 
Ms. Boisvenu briefly went over the details of the project.  She noted that the petition for this was 
initiated by the residents and not by the Township.  She also noted that the engineering for this  
project has not been completed yet, therefore, the cost estimate may change.  She stated that 
Giffels-Webster has become aware that at least one person who originally signed the petition is 
no longer in favor of the project.  She stated that because of this, Giffels-Webster has stopped  
working on the design for this project until the Board has made a determination.  She stated that 
at this time there has been approximately $5,000 spent on the design process. 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 3 

 

Mr. Shigley questioned if this SAD includes just sanitary sewer down Belladonna Drive.  Ms. Boisvenu 
stated that this is correct.  Mr. Shigley questioned if water is included.  Ms. Boisvenu responded that 
water is not included, it is only sewer. 
 
Mr. Adams questioned that out of the thirteen properties, there is only one that backed out. 
Ms. Boisvenu responded that originally there was just 79% in favor of the project on the petition. 
She stated that without the one that backed out, there would still be approximately 52%. 

 
 Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.   
 
 Tony Ochrem, 25800 Belladonna Drive, stated that he has one piece of paper that shows that 
 his portion would be $11,835 and he also has a letter that states $5771.45 and another fee for 
 $2230.80.  He questioned which is the correct assessment for his property.  Mr. Olson responded 
 that it would be $11,835.   
 

Mr. Ochrem stated that if he were to have the assessment against his property and should he 
decide to re-finance his home, the Township would not subordinate the lien.  He stated that 
he would have to pay the lien off in full.  Ms. Carcone stated that the Township will not  
subordinate it, but that they have had other SAD’s that the title company or mortgage company 
have allowed. 

 
 Steve Arbogast, 25700 Belladonna Drive, stated that he is not in favor of the sewers being put in. 
 He stated that the sewers are proposed to go along the east side, which is his property, and that 
 he will not see a benefit because they have no intention of connecting.  He stated that he felt 
 that the petition was informal and misleading. 
 
 Mr. Adams questioned if Mr. Arbogast is one of the residents that said that they did not want to 
 participate.  Ms. Boisvenu responded that Mr. Arbogast did not sign the petition.  She noted that 
 there were eight out of thirteen that originally signed the petition.  She stated that engineering 
 design has not been completed yet, therefore, it has not be determined as to which side of the 
 road the sewers will go in on.  There was brief discussion about the information that was presented  

in the petition to the residents.   
 
 Laurie McDougal, 25500 Belladonna Drive, stated that it was her understanding that this petition 
 was only to see who was interested and then more information would be presented in order to 
 move forward.  She stated that her concerns are with why the whole street would be torn up  
 just for sewer and that water and gas would not be included.  She felt that they need to have 
 more details and more up-to-date costs.   
 
 Tony Ochrem, 25800 Belladonna Drive, stated that he did not sign the petition.  He noted that  
 he is formally opposed to this until more information is provided. 
 
 Emily Bomlitz, 25700 Belladonna Drive, stated that she did not sign the petition and is not in favor 
 of sewers being put in.  She felt that the petition was very informal and misleading. 
 
 Mr. Shigley made a motion to close the public hearing for the Belladonna Drive Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements Special Assessment District and open the regular meeting.  Ms. Carcone supported  
the motion. 

 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved.   

The public hearing was closed and the regular meeting was opened at 7:23 PM. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 4 

 

 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 a.  Resolution Determining Sufficiency of Petitions and Necessity of Improvements and  
      Designating Special Assessment District for Belladonna Drive Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
      Special Assessment District 
 

Mr. Quinn stated that the resolution that is in front of the Board: 
 1.  determines the sufficiency of petitions – this means that the petition has  
      been signed by more than 50% of the acreage in the district; 
 2.  approve the tentative plan, as outlined by Ms. Boisvenu, and the cost 
      estimate, which is exactly that, a cost estimate; 
 3.  in paragraph 2, the Board determines that there is a necessity for sewer 
      in this area and that they desire to move forward to the next step in the 
      process.   
He stated that if the Board approves this Resolution, then the Engineers will continue to complete 
a design of the project.  The Engineers will then submit this out for bids so that they will have an 
actual cost of completion.  During the meantime, residents in this area will have the opportunity 
to decide if they want to purchase REU’s to be included in the SAD.  He stated that should the 
Board decide not to approve this Resolution this evening, then this matter will not proceed. 
 
Mr. Shigley questioned if this is approved tonight, then it will move forward.  Mr. Quinn responded 
that this is correct. 
 
Ms. Carcone stated that she does not feel comfortable approving the Belladonna request.  She 
stated that she would like to see Mr. Olson explain to the residents what the project would be  
and how the costs are determined.  She stated that she would prefer not to incur anymore costs 
from the engineers or legal counsel.  She noted an error on the notice of public hearing with 
regard to the additional  5% admin fee, which is another fee that the residents are not aware of. 
She stated that she would rather see people educated on this project so that they understand 
what they are signing for. 
 
Mr. Cash questioned if this process is typical of how other Townships do SAD’s.  Mr. Crandell  
responded that it is fairly typical.  He stated that they sometimes hold a feasibility hearing where 
the facts are explained.  He stated that they could hold a feasibility hearing for this project. 
 
Mr. Bisio questioned who pays for the $5,000 that have been spent on the design so far.   
Mr. Crandell responded that the Township would pay for this.  He stated that when they tentatively  
establish the district, the next step is to start the engineering.  Mr. Bisio questioned if they okayed 

the 
expenditure.  Ms. Carcone responded that they did so at the July meeting.   
 
There was further brief discussion with regard to how this type of process is handled in other 
communities.   
 
Mr. Young stated that they reacted to a request made by some of the citizens.  He stated that this 
Board has never pushed sewers on anybody.  He felt that they should take the comments under 
advisement.  He felt that if there is still some interest for this, then they should hold an advisory 
meeting.  
 
Mr. Young made a motion to take this under advisement and to hold an advisory meeting for 
the residents to come forth and voice their opinions.  Mr. Adams supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Ms. Carcone 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 5 

 

questioned if they could have an advisory meeting when the Engineers are here at the office. 
Mr. Crandell stated that they would not charge the Township for this meeting. 
 
Mr. Cash stated that this is the second SAD that there has been miscommunication on.  He 
suggested that some money be put in escrow that would recover the cost of an estimate so that 
if the presenters are not totally honest in getting all the information to their neighbors, the Township  
would not have to incur the costs for the estimate, it would be the people who want it. 
 
Ms. Johnson stated that she feels every SAD should have a public forum meeting before any costs 
are incurred. 
 
Mr. Shigley then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Adams, Young, Cash, Shigley, Johnson, Carcone, Bisio 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
b.  Quadrants Industrial Research Centre – Amendments to Approved Condominium dated  
     6/10/04, South Side of Grand River Avenue, West of Napier Road 
 
Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
July 20, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
Mr. Young made a motion approve the fifth amendment to the approved condominium for 
Quadrants Industrial Research Centre.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Johnson, Carcone, Shigley, Bisio, Adams, Young, Cash 
    Nays: None 
  
 Motion approved. 
 
c.  Attorney Determination and Report on Retroactive Pay 
 
Mr. Quinn reviewed the comments indicated in his opinion letter dated July 21, 2004 regarding this 
issue.  He stated that it is his opinion that regarding the 2002 3% retroactive pay increase to the 
Clerk and Treasurer was an improper action and that there should be repayment of these funds. 
He stated that the retroactive pay increase given to the employees is not prohibited by the 
Constitution or any case law.  He noted that there were not any contractors dealt with under this 
retroactive action. 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that with regard to the 2003 budget, there was nothing that was improper with 
any of the actions taken at that time. 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that with regard to the 2004 budget, he determined that at a meeting on March 
1, 2004 there was a 2.1% salary increase for employees that was granted retroactive to the first of  
the year, which was a proper action.  He stated that there was a retroactive salary granted in the 
amount of 2.1% for the Clerk and the Treasurer that was improper.  He stated that granting the 
pay increase forward from March 1 was a proper action.  The retroactive monies from January to 
March should be repaid.  He stated that at the same meeting the Recording Secretary was given 
a $10 per meeting increase.  This increase was made retroactive to the first of the year, which was 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 6 

 

an improper action, therefore, retroactive monies should be repaid.  
 
Mr. Quinn stated that the appropriate action would be for the Board to direct either the  
Superintendent or the Auditor to make the calculation of the compensation that was received by 
the public officers and the recording secretary contractor.  He stated that the Board should then  
request, in a reasonable amount of time, that the monies be repaid. 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that he did receive an e-mail from the Clerk indicated that she and the Treasurer 
have repaid $1,669, which was placed into an escrow account and is ready for repayment to the 
Township when a final determination is made of the exact amount. 
 
Mr. Young stated that it is important to note that Mr. Quinn performed this research on a pro-bono  
basis for the Township. 
 
Mr. Cash made a motion to direct the Superintendent to research the numbers and come up with 
a figure for repayment.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Ms. Carcone 
stated that the amount that she and Pam paid back is in error, they paid back $1,600.69.  She  
stated that she actually had a personal attorney check into this, who advised her and Pam to pay 
this back.  She stated that she did not speak to or e-mail Mr. Quinn before getting this letter. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Shigley, Adams, Young, Carcone, Johnson, Cash, Bisio 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
d.  South Lyon Schools Sanitary Sewer at Woodwind Development 
 
Mr. Shigley noted that some members of the Board were brought up to speed on this issue at a 
special meeting in July.  He stated that this issue deals with extra cost for sanitary sewer based on 
the Township’s discussion with the School Board.  He stated that the amount is approximately 
$226,000. 
 
Mr. Olson stated that after discussing this with the Township Attorney and Township Engineer after 
the last informal meeting, it was determined that there are some design issues that need to be 
discussed between the Township Engineers and IDS.  He stated that there are conflicts between 
statements and records that have been submitted.  He further discussed the conflicts. 
 
Mr. Olson stated that his proposal would be for Giffels-Webster to get with IDS and go through the 
records of which there are conflicts and see if they can come up with a solution.  
 
Mr. Shigley noted that it is his understanding that the School Board has already spent this money. 
He stated that they need to get this resolved in a timely fashion. 

 
Mr. Crandell stated that first of all they need to agree on the facts.  He noted that he could sit  
down with John Lewis and go over the information that they don’t agree on and sort them out. 
He felt that they could agree on a lot of the facts.  He stated that he would expect that this would 
take about 30 to 45 days to sort through this and resolve the issue. 
 
Mr. Olson noted that the Copperwood development still has not received final approval from the 
Board.  He stated that this is another aspect that needs to be taken care of because it does affect 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 7 

 

this issue. 
 
Dr. Pearson stated that if this issue is not resolved, they are going to have to determine where they 
are going to take the funds out of their site budget.  He stated that they were looking for some  
sort of resolution tonight so that they didn’t have to have another meeting. 
 
Mr. Young stated that in the past the Board has always had a good working relationship with the 
School District and they want to preserve this relationship.  He noted that he did read through a lot 
of the information and felt that there are some issues that need to be discussed.  He stated that  
he is not prepared to take action on this issue tonight because the Board still needs more  
information. 
 
Ms. Carcone noted that she does not have a report from the Township’s side.  She stated that she 
does have the report from the School Board.  She stated that she cannot make a decision until she 
has all the information from both sides. 
 
There was discussion with regard to the amount of time that was indicated to take care of this 
issue between Engineers.  Ms. Carcone questioned if this could be put through as an emergency 
and taken care of in less time. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that they have a mess here that needs to be resolved.  He stated that they can  
talk it to death or have committees, but the issue remains that this needs to be resolved so that  
they can move on. 
 
Mr. Adams stated that it looks like the good faith procedure between parties broke down.  He 
stated that the developer really doesn’t have a firm okay from this Board that he can go ahead 
with this project.  He stated that there has to be procedures put in place.  He noted that this 
should have never gone forward and money should have never been spent unless there was a 
firm commitment from the Township.   

 
Mr. Shigley made a motion to approve the pay back amount of $226,924 to the South Lyon School 
District within the next 30 days based upon the letter and the intent of the Township’s agreement 
with the School Board.  Mr. Adams supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked of there were any comments from the Board regarding the motion.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Ted Soper, 27565 T.F. Hicks, stated that if there is something that has been done wrong, then they 
should fix it.  He stated that it seems that the Township is in a hurry to pay the school back.  He  
stated that one of the issues is, if a deal was made between the schools and the developer, well 
right now the development has not been approved.  If there was an agreement, they would still 
have to wait for the development to get through the process and built, because otherwise there 
would not be any revenue to pay for the sewers.  He noted that this is probably 1 to 1-1/2 years out. 
He stated that he would rather work in good faith and make sure that everybody agrees rather  
than rush this.  He stated that if Copperwood would have never been approved, then where 

would 
the money have come from.  He felt that they should take their time and get it right and not rush it. 
 
Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale, questioned the dollar amount.  Mr. Shigley responded that it is  
$226,924.  Ms. Hollon questioned why this needs to be repaid.  Mr. Shigley stated that it is based on  
an agreement between the Township and School Board.  Ms. Hollon stated that the money has 
been spent and the sewers are in.  Mr. Shigley responded that this is correct.  Ms. Hollon questioned 
if the Board took a vote to authorize this.  Mr. Shigley responded that they did not.  Ms. Hollon  
stated that maybe the School Board should keep that in mind next time. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 8 

 

 
Ms. Hollon questioned what was happening with the developer.  Mr. Cash briefly explained what 
is happening.  Ms. Hollon stated that if they pay this money back to the School District and the 
developer’s site plan does get approved, she questioned if the Township will be repaid.   
Mr. Shigley responded that it would be the Township’s obligation to get the money from the 
developer based on the method that was approved. 
 
Ms. Carcone asked Mr. Shigley where he planned on taking this money out of the Township’s 
budget.  She noted that this was not approved in the budget.  Mr. Shigley stated that he was 
not part of the negotiations.  Mr. Bisio stated that the letter from the School Board indicated that 
the money should be taken out of the General Fund or else they are going to sue the Township. 
He stated that they have a choice to make. 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Adams, Shigley 
    Nays: Young, Cash, Johnson, Bisio, Carcone 
 
 Motion failed. 
 
Mr. Young made a motion to table this issue for 45 days to allow time to sort out the facts and  
come to a resolution.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There was 
brief discussion with regard to how the developer is involved in this.  There was discussion with 
Mr. Crandell as to the time frame.  Mr. Crandell noted that 45 days is a good estimate.  He stated 
that they would try to get this done sooner. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Cindy Orendach, School Board, expressed her displeasure with the 45 days, she felt it was too long.   
She stated that it only took the School Board three days to prepare their report.  
 
Ted Soper, 27565 T.F. Hicks, offered his time to the Board.  He noted that he was in on the Planning 
Commission sub-committee discussions regarding Copperwood. 
 
Mr. Young amended his motion to stated “45 days or sooner”.  Ms. Carcone supported the  
amendment to the motion. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Bisio, Carcone, Johnson, Young, Cash 
    Nays: Shigley, Adams 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
e.  Second Reading and Proposed Adoption of Ordinance pertaining to Grease Interceptors –  
     #97A-04 
 
Mr. Quinn stated that this is the ordinance that the Board saw at the last meeting.  He stated that 
it is now ready for second reading and adoption. 
 
Mr. Cash made a motion to consider this the second reading and proposed adoption of  
Ordinance #97A-04 pertaining to Grease Interceptors.  Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 9 

 

 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Johnson, Shigley, Bisio, Young, Carcone, Adams, Cash 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
f.  Planned Development Regulations – Subcommittee Report 
 
Mr. Doozan stated that the sub-committee (Steve, Ray and Lannie) met on June 17, 2004 and  
came up with some density criteria.  He displayed and discussed the density criteria that they  
came up on the screen using an overhead projector.  He stated that the package is pretty much 
the same except for the density criteria.  He stated that the if the Board is comfortable with the 
density criteria and the other revisions, they can either move ahead with the approval or they 
could send this back to the Planning Commission for their review before going ahead with the 
approval process. 
 
Mr. Quinn questioned if there was already a public hearing on this at the Planning Commission 
level.  Mr. Doozan responded that there was.  Mr. Quinn questioned if the changes made would 
be considered substantial.  Mr. Doozan responded that they probably would, therefore, it they 
should probably hold another public hearing. 

 
Mr. Young made a motion to send this the Planning Commission for their review and for them to 
take action and hold another public hearing.  Mr. Cash supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Adams, Bisio, Carcone, Cash, Shigley, Johnson 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
g.  Update on GRS Negotiations on Gas Revenue 
 
Mr. Olson gave a brief update on the negotiations.  He distributed a spread sheet with dollar 
amounts to the Board, which he explained and discussed.  He stated that they need the Board’s 
authorization to proceed and needs the Board’s input on what they would like to see 
accomplished. 
 
Mr. Shigley questioned when the last payment was received.  Mr. Olson responded that the last 
payment was received in February, 2002.  He stated that Lyon Township, Salem Township and  
another community near Kalamazoo were cut off cold.  He noted that the Township had been 
getting between $104,000 to $150,000 per year depending upon how many generators were on 
line, etc.   
 
Mr. Young briefly discussed the methodology of how the payments came about.  He stated that 
he does not feel that they should settle for anything less than what is in the blue column on Chris’ 
spreadsheet handout.  Mr. Cash and Ms. Carcone concurred.  Mr. Bisio stated that he concurs 
and feels that the payment is too low and felt that they should continue negotiating. 
 
Mr. Young made a motion to take this under advisement and authorize the Superintendent to go 
forward with negotiations.  Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 10 

 

 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
h.  Community Center Policy 
 
Mr. Olson briefly reviewed the Community Center policy that was submitted by Todd Krueger.  He 
stated that this is a common sense set of policies that govern the use of the facility.  He stated that 
at this time they are not seeking to collect rent payments, but this may change when they get into 
budget discussions later this year.   
 
Mr. Quinn questioned if there are any State or Federal Funds that have been used in the  
Community Center for any improvements.  Mr. Olson responded that they have used CDBG  
Funds.  Mr. Quinn stated that he has a problem with this stating that only Lyon Township  
residents can use this.  He stated that he believes that this would have to be open to everyone, 
and offered to research this. 
 
Ms. Carcone made a motion to table the policies for the Community Center.  Mr. Bisio supported  
the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Mr. Young 
stated that he felt that the document was nicely done. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
i.  Zip Code Advisory Question for November General Election Ballot 
 
Mr. Olson explained that Mr. Quinn submitted proposed wording for the ballot.  He noted that he 
wrote two other questions for the ballot regarding this issue.  He stated that the Board, if they 
choose, can select which question they would like to see on the November ballot. 

 
Mr. Young made a motion to select question #3 to be placed on the ballot.  Mr. Cash supported  
the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Mr. Quinn 
stated that he did not know if the public knows what question 3 is.  Mr. Young read question 3 
out loud to the residents.  There was discussion with regard to the three questions.  Mr. Young 
explained why he selected question 3.  Mr. Adams noted that they have had comments from  
the citizens indicating that they would like to have the designation of Lyon Township.  He noted 
that the mail is sorted by zip codes and not by city names.  After further discussion, Mr. Young  
withdrew the motion.  Mr. Cash withdrew support of the motion. 
 
Ms. Carcone made a motion to select question #1 as an advisory question to be placed on the 
November ballot as presented by the Township Attorney with the one correction made, change 
Livonia to Northville.  Mr. Adams supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments from the Board regarding the motion.  There were 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 11 

 

none.  He then asked if there were any public comments. 
 
Marilyn Miller-Smith, 58557 Travis Road, stated that she does not understand the point of changing 
this.  She believes that New Hudson could possibly eventually distinguish itself more depending on 
the development in the area.  She did not feel that it is right to abandon the designation of  
New Hudson. 
 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Adams, Cash, Carcone, Bisio 
    Nays: Shigley, Young, Johnson 
 
 Motion approved. 
 
The Board took a short break.  The meeting resumed at 8:45 PM. 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a.  Resolution to Approve Library Ballot Language for November General Election 

 
Marilyn Miller-Smith, Library Board, asked if there are any questions from Board members regarding 
the resolution. 
 
Ms. Carcone questioned why this millage would get affected by Headlee.  Mr. Quinn responded  
that this is not for purchase of specific items for improvement.  It is a general operating millage for 
the Library.  With these funds the Library will be entering into a lease agreement with the entity 
that is going to construct the Library.  The lease payments will be comparable to the contractor’s 
borrowing of those funds.  It will allow them to purchase books and equipment.  He stated that this 
is subject to the Headlee.   
 
Ms. Carcone questioned why “in perpetuity” was put in the resolution.  Ms. Miller-Smith explained 
that the reason they put this in the resolution is that this will also cover operational costs.  She felt 
that by placing “in perpetuity” in there they were insuring that whoever is involved with the Library 
at that time will have operating funds.  She stated that otherwise they would have to go back to  
the public.  Ms. Carcone stated that she would consider 20 or 25 years, but has a problem with 
“in perpetuity”.  
 
Mr. Young stated that they are all supportive of the Library.   
 
Mr. Olson briefly went over the finances for the Library, as outlined in a spreadsheet that was  
submitted to the Board with a memo from him dated August 4, 2004. 
 
Mr. Shigley stated that he is not an advocate of raising taxes.  He stated that it sounds like  
everyone is agreement that 2 mils is the magic number for this.  Ms. Miller-Smith stated that 2 mils 
is workable.  Mr. Olson noted that 2 mils is the legal maximum. 
 
Ms. Carcone stated that she is still concerned with the wording.  She stated that she would rather 
have a certain amount of years indicated in lieu of “in perpetuity”.  Mr. Young noted that it would 
have to be at least 25 years to cover the debt. 
 
Ms. Carcone questioned if they were to approve the ballot language at it is now and it gets voted 
down, can they come back and do it again.  Mr. Quinn responded that they could bring the same 
issue back once a year. 
 
Mr. Young made a motion to approve the resolution for the ballot language with the following 
correction:  change “in perpetuity” to 30 years.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 12 

 

 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  Mr. Young  
stated that he did have some conversation with at least four of the Library Board members who 
have indicated that they prefer “in perpetuity” but that they agree that a term could be used 
also. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any public comments.   
 
Talon Harvey, 57593 Apple Lane, stated that he feels that it is a great proposal to build a new 
Library.  He stated that he would like the Board to consider the location because they are trying 
to build a walkable community.  He felt that the Lyon Towne Center area would be a good 
location for a walkable community.  Mr. Cash stated that he does not feel that they can afford 
Lyon Towne Center.  Ms. Miller-Smith stated that one of the prime features of the location they 
have selected is that it is near the bike path.  She felt that this makes it a walkable area. 
 
Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, stated that right now the citizens of Lyon Township are not 
permitted to use the South Lyon Library unless they pay $100 per year.  She questioned if South 
Lyon residents can use the Lyon Township Library.  Mr. Shigley responded that this is correct. 
Ms. Hollon questioned that if this millage is passed, is there any way that South Lyon residents could  
be excluded or have them pay a fee.  She stated that this is not to get back at them, but she only 
wants to make it fair for the Lyon Township residents.  She questioned if this could be added to the 
ballot wording.  Mr. Olson responded that this would not be for the ballot, it would be a policy that 
the Library would have to set. 
 
Ms. Hollon stated that she feels that this is a good thing and is supportive of it.  She stated that she  
does not want to pay higher taxes for others to use their library. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Young, Bisio, Carcone, Adams, Cash, Johnson, Shigley 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 

b.  Final Preliminary Approval Request for Hialeah Farms, South Side of Pontiac Trail, West of  
     Old Plank Road, AP-03-44, Donald Bartowiak, applicant. 

 
 Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
 June 25, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
 Ms. Johnson questioned if the road is going to be private or public.  Mr. Doozan responded that it is 
 to be a public road. 
 

Mr. Young made a motion to approve the tentative preliminary and final plat per the conditions 
set forth in the June 25, 2005 McKenna Associates, Inc. letter.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 

 
Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board. He then asked 
if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 
 Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Adams, Carcone, Bisio, Johnson, Cash, Young, Shigley 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

  
c.  Final PD Approval Request – Elkow Farms Planned Development – AP-03-09, Ivanhoe-Huntley 
     Companies and Hitech Building LLC applicants – Proposed Ordinance #124-04 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 13 

 

  
 Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
 June 25, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
 Mr. Shigley stated that he would like to have the developer speak and then take public comment 
 before taking comments from the Board. 
 

Ray Cusineau, representing Ivanhoe Companies,  stated that they have been at this process for  
approximately two years now.  He stated that they have been before the Planning Commission,  
which has given the a recommendation for approval of the planned development.  He stated 
that they have no objection to the comments by Mr. Doozan except for one.  He stated that  
they were approved for 649 units and that they do intend to add the one unit back into the plan. 
He noted that it will probably be added as a single family lot. 
 
Mr. Cusineau distributed a list of amenities to the Board that total $9,600,000 that they consider  
community wide benefits, which he briefly reviewed and discussed.   
 
Mr. Cusineau stated that this planned development is over 600 acres and that they have been  
approved by the Planning Commission for a density bonus of 130 units over what they could get by 
ordinance.  He stated that their PD is almost one square mile with almost $10,000,000 of community 
benefits provided. 
 
Ms. Carcone asked Mr. Cusineau to point out the various areas of the development.  Mr. Cusineau,  
using a displayed plan, pointed out the various areas of the development. 
 
Rick Elkow discussed the safety paths of the project.  He noted that they never planned on putting 
a safety path in one area, which he pointed out on the plan, because it really goes nowhere. 
Mr. Cusineau stated that they are providing a safety path all along Spaulding Road. 
 
Shirley Baker, 27239 Stancrest, questioned how close the east entrance to the development is to 
Stancrest.  Mr. Cusineau responded that it is approximately 500’.  Mr. Elkow stated that they have  
to live within Oakland County Road standards with regard to site distances.  He noted that they  
have preliminary approval from the Road Commission for this. 
 

 Talon Harvey, 57593 Apple Lane, stated that this is a beautiful development.  He stated that with 
 this many homes, Spaulding Road is going to have tons of traffic.  He questioned if Spaulding Road 
 could be paved.  He noted that there will be an elementary school in this neighborhood too. 
 
 John Hicks, 29393 Tonester Circle, stated that the PD Ordinance states that a development must be 
 on a paved road.  He questioned what the plans are for the section that abuts Twelve Mile Road. 
 
 Troy Schilling, 57780 Twelve Mile Road, stated that this is a nice development, but since it has gone 
 through the Planning Commission there have been changes.  He stated that regardless of whether 
 it is one additional home, he felt that it should go back to the Planning Commission.  He stated that 
 with regard to the $10,000,000 of benefits, he was not sure how much of this is a true number.  He 
 stated that he believed the Ordinance requires that most of these road be paved.  He stated that 
 25% density is a record and hard to swallow.  He questioned that amount of land that could be 
 built upon in the 62.1 acres designated as Community Park Site.  Mr. Olson responded that the 
 Conservancy has a strict limitation on any structures and only a certain amount can be impervious. 
 He stated that he believes that it is only 10% of the total acreage.  He further discussed the plan for 
 soccer fields and ball diamonds at this site. 
 
 Mr. Cusineau stated that since they went through the Planning Commission level, they have met 
 with Loren Crandell and Chuck Biegan, who have made it very clear that they needed to add 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 14 

 

  water main along Milford Road, south of Eleven Mile Road, which was not on their original plans. 
 He stated that the cost of this is approximately $200,000.  He stated that they could have  

developed this property without doing a PD and then they would not have had to pave anything.   
He stated that 130 extra units for 600 acres is not too much to ask for.  There was discussion as to  
why there was a change with the water main. 

 
 Les Cash, Fire Chief, stated that he has a problem with the street names in the development.  He 
 stated that there are duplication of names and that they just won’t work. 
 
 Melissa Lambrecht, 57860 Twelve Mile Road, questioned if it is possible to make Milford Road three 
 lanes rather than put the money into acceleration and deceleration lanes.  She stated that it  
 would make more sense especially seeing that Mill River will be going in soon also. 
 
 Ken Sprinkles, 59000 Twelve Mile Road, stated that he feels that this is a far superior plan than what 
 they have seen or will ever see.  He felt that the Board should approve the plan. 
 
 Darcy Hollon, 24300 Martindale Road, stated that she was at many of the Planning Commission 
 meetings when this issue was discussed.  She re-iterated the comments that she made at the 
 Planning Commission meetings.  She stated that if the developer can modify their plans and add 
 the extra lot back in, then they should be able to comply with everything that the Planning 
 Commission asked for. 
 
 Abraham Ayoub, 21962 Lyon Trail North, stated that this is not a bad plan, but felt that 25%  
 bonus is too high. 
 
 Philip Elkow, 26293 South Hill Road, briefly discussed the proposed project.  He stated that he is  
 proud of the group that put this development together. 
 
 Mr. Crandell reviewed of the comments indicated in the May 10, 2004 Giffels-Webster letter in 
 regard to the drainage for the proposed school site.   
 
 Mr. Olson questioned when the developer planned on hearing from the School District with  
 regard to the detention pond.  Mr. Elkow responded that the School District needs to provide 
 them with an answer within 45 days because they are planning on moving dirt this Fall.  Mr. Olson 
 questioned if the pond is one of the first things that will be constructed.  Mr. Elkow responded that 
 the pond is pretty much done the first thing.  He noted that the bulk of his work and the bulk of  
 the fill is in the pond. 
 
 Mr. Crandell stated that with regard to the water main at Eleven Mile Road, he made a  
 recommendation for a reason.  He stated that he is not sure if the Township wants to make a  
 decision on this tonight.  He stated that with regard to the 100 year floodplain, the Storm Water 
 Master Plan identified the hazard areas.  He stated that it is possible the 100 year floodplain 
 will be where there are proposed lots.  He stated that the developer will probably be asking to 
 fill these areas. 
 
 Mr. Shigley stated that he does understand that there has been a lot of time spent on this project 
 to get to this point.  He stated that Tanglewood went through a similar process with the pond and 
 is still going through the process.  He questioned if this will be a similar process that goes on for 
 years or will this be a single only time.  Mr. Doozan responded that each of the individual phases  
 have to go through the Planning Commission. 
 
 Mr. Shigley stated that he lives in the area of Eleven Mile and questioned if the drain is going to  
 improve with this development or is it going to remain the same.  He stated that recently they have 
 have a few good rains, and that he has seen a considerable improvement but noted that his  



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 15 

 

 neighbor still has water.  Mr. Crandell stated that they are showing improvements in the drain, and 
 indicated that he did not feel that it would get worse.  He further discussed the drain issue. 
 
 Mr. Young stated that he feels that this is a great plan for 600 acres cohesively in the central part of  

the Township and that they don’t have to deal with these parcels as individual acreage.  He stated 
that in talking with the Planners, the layout and what the development offers, this is the most 
superior development with what it offers to the Township, to date.  He noted that they do have  
some nice developments coming to the Township.  He stated that he supports this.  One of the hot 
topics is the density issue and he is a real advocate against density, but they have to make sure as 
planners that the development is aesthetically pleasing, meets the setbacks and preserves the  
rural character.  He stated that he feels that this development does this.   
 
Mr. Young stated that he was originally opposed to the duplex units along Milford Road.  He 
discussed when the zoning was changed from agricultural to R-1.0.  He stated that if the duplex 
units were subtracted out of the equation and single family homes were added, it would be a  
16% density bonus increase.  He stated that if the paving of the roads that they don’t have to do 
were taken out also, the density would drop down even more.  He felt that this is a trade-off and  
this is what the Board has to determine, if this what they want.  He stated that he felt that the  
Planning Commission did an excellent job on this.  He stated that he supports the recommendation 
made by the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that he has been involved with this on both the Planning Commission and the Board 
level and it is a tough one.  He stated that he has flip-flopped at least two or three times.  He stated 
that he likes the layout, but his biggest concern is the quality of the housing that is going into this 
development.  He stated that with regard to the density, he bought into it at the Planning  
Commission level.  He stated that the issues brought up by Mr. Crandell are very relevant.  He felt  
that he probably has a lot of questions that still need to be answered.  He felt that there are still a  
lot of loose ends that need to be wrapped up.  He stated that if this development could match 
Tanglewood, he would not have any qualms at all about approving, but he is not sure that the 
cost of the housing will be that high. 
 
Mr. Bisio stated that he is concerned about the quality of the houses and the duplexes as well as 
the price range of these.  He stated that he is more concerned about the quality rather than the 
density numbers.   
 
Ms. Johnson stated that she is very grateful that this development is providing these amenities. 
She questioned if the bridge on Milford Road and the one on Eleven Mile Road are going to have 
some improvements done to them.  Mr. Cusineau responded that structurally these are in good 
shape but there will be some improvements, not a total replacement.  Ms. Johnson noted that  
these have been problem areas for many years and felt that the improvements are great  
amenities.  She stated that she does like the layout of the whole planned development.  She felt 
that the density bonus is a trade-off for a quality planned development.  She stated that she is in 
support of this development. 
 
Mr. Shigley stated that he does see a lot of benefits with this plan.  He stated that he is in support 
of this project.  He felt that the Planning Commission has scrutinized this plan to a great degree and 
supported it.  He questioned what is going to happen to the dog cemetery.  Mr. Elkow responded 
that it is going to be left.  He noted that it will be improved.  Mr. Cusineau stated that they will be 
cleaning the area up.  He noted that they have been talking to the Humane Society about this. 
 
Mr. Shigley questioned the type of phasing that will be done.  Mr. Cusineau responded that they  
are not sure yet, it will be market driven.  He started that they will probably break it down into two 
portions, east and west of Milford Road.  He stated that they will probably start with west of Milford 
Road.  Mr. Elkow stated that his father is going to stay and farm his property for as long as he wants. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 16 

 

 
Mr. Bisio questioned who will develop the Elkow houses.  Mr. Elkow responded that he will be the  
builder along with Ron Cook of Cook Development.  He stated that he is just beginning in this field 
and that is why he brought on a partner with significant more experience than himself.  Ron Cook,  
Cook Development, stated that he is the ninth largest builder in a nine County area. 

 
 Mr. Bisio questioned the percentage of brick to be used on the homes.  Mr. Elkow responded that  
 they are still working on the details. 
 
 Mr. Cusineau asked Mr. Doozan if the PD Agreement is a document that needs to come back 
 before the Township Board at sometime in the future.  Mr. Doozan responded that it could be 
 approved at this stage.   
 
 Mr. Young stated that they are in the process of approving the Planned Development now.  He 
 questioned if there are some architectural standards that need to be agreed upon in terms of 
 percentage of brick, etc.  He stated that they don’t want to approve this and then come back 
 and argue about the details later.  Mr. Cusineau stated that it could be done now, but it is  
 typically done at the time that the Condominium Master Deeds are approved.  Mr. Young  
 questioned if this could be put on any approval as a contingency.  Mr. Cusineau stated that he 
 feels that they all understand this.  He stated that they have to come back before the Planning 
 Commission for each site plan. 
 
  Mr. Cook stated named a few of the developments that he has done in the area. He stated that 
 they are a quality company and that they stand behind their product. 
 
 Ms. Carcone stated that she absolutely loves this project.  She stated that this project is everything 
 that she wanted, except for the density.  She stated that she feels that there is a need for the 
 condominiums.   
 
 Mr. Cash stated that there was discussion with regard to paving Eleven Mile Road between this  

development and the Hornbrook Development.  He questioned the status of this.  Mr. Cusineau 
responded that they have committed to share the cost of this with the Mancinelli group.  He  
stated that he will guarantee that if the Mancinelli group does not come through, they will take 
care of it. 
 
Mr. Adams stated that the Planning Commission is the protector of the Master Plan.  He stated that 
when he heard that they were giving a 25% density bonus, he fell off his chair.  He stated that he  
knows the members of the Planning Commission, and they want the developers to build on one  
acre lots and follow the Master Plan.  He stated that they are not following the Master Plan on this 
project, however, it is a quality project.  He stated that the developer is giving things to the  
community that are a benefit to the community. 
 
Mr. Adams asked Mr. Cook where he is currently building.  Mr. Cook responded that he has built 
in Dundee, Canton Township, Plymouth Township, Green Oak Township, Chelsea, Saline, Bedford  
Township, Frenchtown Township and Berlin Township. 
 
Mr. Adams stated that this is the biggest density bonus that this Township will ever have, if the  
Board should approve this.  He stated that what it really entails is that it leaves the door open for 
other developers to come in and want the same.  He stated that as a community and as a Board, 
they have to look to see if the benefits warrant the density bonus.  He stated that this development 
has given the community many benefits.  He noted that everybody on this Board, when they were 
running for office, stated that they believe in the Master Plan. 

 
Mr. Young made a motion to approve AP-03-09, Elkow Farm Planned Development, subject to the  



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 17 

 

following conditions: 
1.  All the contingencies cited in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated June 25, 2004. 
2.  That there is an understanding that Eleven Mile Road will be paved all the way to Martindale 
     Road whether or not the agreement with the Mancinelli Group goes through. 
3.  The detention basin that is adjacent to the school property must be sized to handle the school 
     property needs in the absence of an agreement with the School Board to handle the storm 
     water, as approved by the Township Engineers. 
4.  The architectural designs as referred to as Exhibit 9 have to be presented and approved by 
     the Township Board. 
5.  The bike path approved with the development by the Planning Commission must be  
     completed or funds equal to the linear distance of the bike path must be contributed to a 
     Bike Path Fund. 
6.  The street names must be approved by the Fire Chief. 
Mr. Bisio supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Shigley asked of there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He noted that the public has already made comments regarding this issue. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Shigley, Carcone, Adams, Bisio, Johnson, Cash, Young  
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
 d.  Tanglewood Golf Community Waste Water Treatment Facility 
  
 Mr. Freund stated that he has been struggling with MDEQ to expand their waste water facility. 
 He stated that they received a form in July regarding a process that MDEQ wants him to follow. 
 He stated that he is asking the Board to sign Addendum A, which calls for Lyon Township to be 
 the back-up responsible party in the event of the inability of the developer or the Homeowner’s 
 Association to handle this at some point in the future. 
 
 John Catarino, Boss Engineering, briefly gave a history of the waste water facility and the  

agreement that the Board signed.  He stated that Mr. Freund had Brent Canup order the 
 materials  

for this project, which may be on their way.  He stated that they cannot get a discharge permit or  
construction permit because MDEQ has changed their documents that have to be executed.  He 
stated that since the Board has already signed on for the first phase, they feel that the Board 

should 
sign on for the second phase.  He stated that the problem is that MDEQ has a new form and now 
wants the Board to sign the new form.  He stated that if the Board opts not to sign Addendum A, 
then they were told that they could move forward with Mr. Freund to be primary responsible and  
the Homeowner’s Association would be responsible for phase two, with the Township still being  
responsible for phase one. 
 
Mr. Olson briefly explained what the Board signed in 2001 in regards to the waste water facility. 
He also explained what the Board is being asked to sign now.  Dean Gould, Attorney, explained  
how they understand this issue.  He stated that they believe that it makes sense to have the  
Board sign the Addendum for the second phase since they signed the original agreement. 
 
After further discussion, the Board determined that they would further discuss this issue at a  
special meeting next week. 

 
 Mr. Young made a motion to table Tanglewood Golf Community Waste Water Treatment Facility 
 until the Board’s special meeting scheduled for Thursday, August, 19, 2004 at 5:00 PM to allow 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 18 

 

Legal Counsel to prepare the resolution for this issue.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
 e.  Twin Pines Condominiums Approval Request, AP-02-16, Jeff Appel applicant  
 
 Mr. Doozan reviewed the comments indicated in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated 
 July 30, 2004 regarding this issue. 
 
 Jeffrey Haw, Boss Engineering, stated that at a direct request from the Planning Commission, 
 that they get the drain approval from the Engineers as is it stands.  He noted that they did 
 attempt to go before the ZBA, but were tabled for further discussion with the Engineer, which 
 they had.  He stated that it was determined that they could meet the Township Ordinance for 
 the drainage system. 
 
 There was brief discussion with regard to the paving of Martindale Road.  It was noted that the 
 paving must be done as part of Phase I.  Mr. Olson stated that the paving will be done to the 
 entrance of this development.  He stated that the paving with go further down Martindale Road 
 when Phase II is started. 
 
 Mr. Bisio made a motion to approve AP-02-16, Twin Pines Condominiums, subject to the comments 
 and conditions cited in the McKenna Associates, Inc. letter dated July 30, 2004 and that they be 

allowed to use evergreen trees instead of deciduous trees, as required by the ordinance.  Mr. 
Young 

supported the motion. 
 

Mr. Shigley asked if there were any comments regarding the motion from the Board.  There were 
none.  He then asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Young, Cash, Johnson, Adams, Bisio, Shigley, Carcone 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
 f.  Water Softener Backwash Discharge Inspection Program 
 
 g.  Sodium Chloride Action Plan – Giffels Webster Engineers 
  
 h.  Small Animal Clinics in the I-1 Zoning District – Proposed Text Ordinance 
 
 i.  First Amendment to the Easements with Covenants and Restrictions Affecting Land for Lyon 
     Towne Center North Retail Condominium 
 
 j.  First Reading of Normal Domestic Strength Waste Water and Pollution Limitations Amendment 
      Proposed Ordinance 
 
 k.  Auto City Service located at 60999 Grand River Ave. –  Sign variance expired June 1, 2004 – 
      Authorization to litigate for removal of sign 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       August 9, 2004      Page 19 

 

 
11. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA FOR ACTION OR DISCUSSION   NONE 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Mr. Bisio made a motion to adjourn the meeting and table items f through k until the special 

meeting scheduled for next week.  Ms. Carcone supported the motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 

Motion approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 10:54 PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Deby Cothery 
 
Deby Cothery       Pamela Johnson    
Recording Secretary      Clerk   
 


	 District

